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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Gujarat Solar Power
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the company as at 31st March, 2022, its losses, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the board report, but does not include the
standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The board report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibility of Management for Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income / loss, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
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collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in
equity dealt with by this Reports are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone IND AS financial statements comply with

(©)

(f)

the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended,

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “ Annexure B” to this report

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid any remuneration to its managerial personnel during the year
and accordingly reporting in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of
the Act is not required;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

a. The company as disclosed in Note no. 29, does not have any pending
litigations which would impact its financial position. Hence, there is no effect
in its financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. A. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
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company (" Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries, and

C. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material misstatement.

e. During the year, the Company, neither declared nor paid any dividend.
Hence reporting on compliance with provisions of section 123 of the Act does
not arise.

For PHANIBHUSHAN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s registration number: 012481S

PHANI BHUSHAN prorernged oy oHAN

KUMAR M Date: 2022.04.22 19:56:21
+05'30'

M. PHANI BHUSHAN KUMAR
Membership number: 223397

UDIN: 22223397AHRGAM?2821
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22-04-2022
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” Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors” Report referred to in clause 1 of paragraph
on the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date
to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Re: GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited

I.  Inrespect of the Company’s Tangible assets & Intangible assets:

i

ii.

1.

iv.

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant & equipment and there are no
intangible assets held by the company during the year.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, plant
& equipment in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the program, the Company has carried out physical
verification during the previous year and no major discrepancies have been noticed
during such verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where
the Company is a lessee). Hence reporting on Title deeds in the name of the
company and reporting under this clause is not applicable.

There is no revaluation done by the company of its property, plant and equipment
(including the right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

There are no proceedings that have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

II.  Inrespect of details of Company’s Inventory & Working capital:

i

ii.

The nature of company’s operation does not warrant holding of any stocks.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company, during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Five Crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
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a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made
investment in or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties as mentioned in notes to accounts note number 5. The details of the same
are given below:

Particulars Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances in nature
of loans

Aggregate amount during Nil 14,96,99,994 0

the year

Balance outstanding as at Nil | 93,87,20,958 0

balance sheet date

Other parties

b. The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

c. Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company,
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular
wherever applicable except the following :

Name of the Amount of No of years delayed Remarks
Borrower interest overdue

0-1 Year: Rs. 8,05,48,769 Loan is given to
1-2 Year: Rs. 8,40,87,542 Holding Company
GMR Energy Limited Rs. 42,68,69,087 | 2-3 Years: Rs.8,42,95,714 | GMR Energy Ltd
More than 4 Years:
Rs.17,79,37,062

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount
which is overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans or advances in the
nature of loans granted to such companies, firms, LLPs or other parties, except
as mentioned in the table above.

e. The Company has granted no loan(s) or advance(s) in the nature of loan(s)
which had fallen due during the year and such loans or advances in the nature
of loans were not renewed and extended during the year, except the loans
mentioned below :
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Iv.

VL

Name of the Borrower Amount of Loan renewed | Remarks

Loan is given to Holding
GMR Energy Limited Rs. 78,90,20,964 Company GMR Energy
Ltd

g. During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, which are repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the
company has not granted any loan, made any investments, gave any guarantee or
provided security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person
in contravention of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the activities carried out by the Company, and
hence this clause is not applicable.

VII. In respect of Deposit of Statutory liabilities:

a. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

VIII. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

company examined by us we have not come across any instances of any
transactions which are not recorded in the accounts that have been disclosed or
surrendered before the tax authorities as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the income tax act, 1961.
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IX. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given
by the management, we are of the opinion that, the company has not delayed in the
repayment of loans taken from lender & interest thereof during the year.

a) The company has not taken any loan from Government and the company has
not issued any debentures.

b) The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or any other lender.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
money is not raised by way of term loans during the year.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company,
funds raised by the Company on short term basis have not been utilised for
long term purposes.

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments), during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
of the Company examined by us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or
optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XI. a. During the course of examination of the books and records of the company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have not come
across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or
employees of the company during the year. Further there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year.

b. No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audit.
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XTI In our opinion and according to the information and Explanations given to us,

the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order
is not applicable.

XII. According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

XIV. In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an
internal audit system and is not required to have internal audit system as per the
provisions of the companies act, 2013 and the requirement to consider reports of the
Internal Auditors under the clause 3(xiv)(b) does not arise.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

XVI.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company.

XVIL. The company has incurred no cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

XVIIL. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

XIX.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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XX.

XXI.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
fulfilled the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and
accordingly, the details are disclosed under “New disclosures as per the
requirements Division II Schedule III to the Act” (Clause H).

. The company does not have any unspent amount with respect to the

obligations under Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the company is
not liable to transfer any amount neither to the Fund specified under
Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 nor to the Special Account
according to the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013.

The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has
been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For PHANIBHUSHAN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s registration number: 012481S

Digitally signed by PHANI

PHANI BHUSHAN gHusHAN KUMAR M

KUMAR M

Date: 2022.04.22 19:56:48
+05'30'

M. PHANI BHUSHAN KUMAR
Membership number: 223397

UDIN: 22223397AHRGAM2821
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22-04-2022
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date

Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section
(3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR Gujarat
Solar Power Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorization of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PHANIBHUSHAN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm'’s registration number: 012481S
PHANI BHUSHAN  Digitally signed by PHANI

BHUSHAN KUMAR M

KUMAR M Date: 2022.04.22 19:57:10 +05'30"
M. PHANI BHUSHAN KUMAR
Membership number: 223397
UDIN: 22223397 AHRGAM2821
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22-04-2022

H. No. 7-1-396/B/9&13, Flat No. 202. VRK Towers, Beside Brilliant
Grammar High school, BK Guda, Hyderabad 500038.
Mobile: 9666671816, 8466962898 E-Mail:fcaphani@gmail.com



GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
Corporate 1dentity Number (CIN): Ui40100KA2008PLC045783
Balance Sheet as at Mar 31,2022

{Amount in Rs,

Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 525,465 780,549
(b) Right of Use Assets 2 102,935,501 109,792,853
(b) Other Intangible Assets 3 1,806,221,689 1,926,849,949
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Loans 5 1,850 1,850
(d) Non Current tax assets (net) 17 - 734,754
(¢) Other non-current assets ] 3,115,979 4,903,850
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 - 204,140
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 116,966,016 330,801,373
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 48,928,331 9,231,542
(iii) Loans 5 950,408,203 800,724,667
(iv) Other Financial Assets 6 479,300,994 399,709,086
(b) Other current assets 7 18,002,285 23252.174
Total Assets 3,526,406,311 3,606,9806,787
11. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 10 736,000,000 736,000,000
(b) Other Equity 11 (292,740,156) (362,870,756)
LIABILITIES
1.Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Long term borrowings 12 740,256,641 1,064,378,182
(ii) Lease Liabilities 3,831,142 3,949,572
Trade Payables
(b) Provisions 16 662,458 170,813
(c) Other non-current liabilities 15 2,041,400,799 1,858,947,937
2.Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Short term borrowings 12 253,989,246 262,841,944
(ii) Lease Liabilities 118,431 94,368
(iii) Trade Payables 13
- Due to micro small and medium enterprises - -
- Due to others 36,315,805 42,593,518
(iv) Other financial liabilities 14 648,671 543,448
(b) Other current liabilities 15 1,140,595 321,345
(c) Short Term Provisions 16 34,544 16,415
(d) Current tax Liability (net) 17 4,748,133 -
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,526,406,311 3,606,986,787

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date.

For Phani Bhushan & Co

ICAI firm registration number: 012481S
Chartered Accountants

PHANI BHUSHAN ity ety v

KUMAR M e —

M. Phani Bhushan Kumar

Partner

Membership Number. 223397

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22nd April, 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
leh” Digitally signed

by Nikhil Dujari

MOHAN Digitally signed by

MOHAN SIVARAMAN

Dujari 5% SIVARAMAN 7355 5750

Nikhil Dujari
Director
DIN: 07684905

AMITKu n

Scousosse
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MAR: -
PAN: AXERKS

Place; New Delhi
Date: 22nd April, 2022
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Mohan Sivaraman
Director
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GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U40100KA2008PLC045783
Statement of Profit & Loss A/c for the period ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Rs.)

For the period ended

For the period ended

Particulars Notes
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 18 322,878,244 346,923,645
Other Income 19 102,840,213 125,437,438
Total Revenue (1) 425,718,457 472,361,083
EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expense 20 3,859,682 2,947,970
Finance Costs 22 140,180,623 180,708,716
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 127,740,699 127,532,948
Other Expenses 23 69,714,445 52.440.496
Total expenses (I1) 341.495,450 363,630,129
Profit before exceptional items and tax 84,223,007 108,730,954
Profit/(loss) before tax 84,223,007 108,730,954
Tax expense:
Current Tax 14,057,709 -
Deferred Tax 9,835 2,701
Profit/(loss) for the period 70,175,132 108,733,655
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (34,698) 9,277

Income tax effect (9,835) (2,701)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 70,130,600 108,740,231
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 73,600,000 73,600,000
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 73,600,000 73,600,000
Earnings per equity share:
Basic 0.95 1.48
Diluted 0.95 1.48

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date.

For Phani Bhushan & Co

ICAI firm registration number: 012481S

Chartered Accountants
PHANI Digitally signed by PHANI
BHUSHAN oy 0az2 193635
KUMAR M +0530°

M. Phani Bhushan Kumar

Partner

Membership Number. 223397

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22nd April, 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited

Ni kh || Digitally signed
by Nikhil Dujari
« Date: 2022.04.22

D uj a rl 18:12:42 +05'30'
Nikhil Dujari
Director

DIN: 07684905

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22nd April, 2022

MOHAN

Digitally signed by
0

SIVARAMA  sIVARAMAN

N

Date: 2022.04.22
18:13:05 +05'30

Mohan Sivaraman
Director
DIN: 07895711

KHUSBOO 00 pmasns
RRAGAD: DiHAS
Company Secretary
PAN:AWHPP4326P




GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
Corporate ldentity Number (CIN): U40100KA2008PLC045783
Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter ended 31st March 2022
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit / (loss) before tax 84,223,007 108,730,954
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amortisation 127,740,699 127,532,948
Interest on harrawings 139,752,367 180,274,578
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Asset - 1,043,714
Debit balances Written off = 11,028
Interest on Lease Liability 428,256 434,138
Remeasurement of Employee Benefit expense (34,698) 9,277
Straight lining of revenue 182,452,862 192,493,234
Interest income on ICD (89,498,632) (84.,425,243)
Liability Written back - (24,611,196)
Profit on sale of current investments (10,764 .643) (12.921.227)
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 434,299,218 488,572,205
Working Capital Adjustments

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 105,224 (15,368,260)
[ncrease/ (decrease) in Provisions 509,775 65,728
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Liabilities 819,250 (520,011)
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables (6,277,714) 3,900,809
(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets 956,861 274,036
(Increase)/Decrease in Other assets 6,673,799 1,260,448
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 204,140 (204,140)
Cash Generated From Operations 437,290,553 477,980,815
Less : Direct Tax (paid),Refunds 734,754 28,999,107
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 438,025,307 506,979,922
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Purchase of fixed assets - (5,562,689)
Disposal of Fixed Asset - 363,049
(increase)/ decrease in Current Investments 199,958,840 (7,459,336)
Gain on sale of Current Investments 24,641,160 5,355,770
(increase)/ decrease in Loans & Advances (149.683.536) (16.458)
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) 74,916,464 (7,319,664)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Repayment of Borrowings (341,488,162) (404,552,968)
Interest/Borrowing cost paid (131,238,444) (169,829,216)
Lease Liability principal payment (518,375) (518,375)
Net cash flow (used in) in financing activities (C) (473.2244.931) (574.900&;9)1
Net (decrease ) /In cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 39.696.790 (75.240.301)
Cash and cash equivalents (Opening) 9,231,542 84,471,843
Cash and cash equivalents (Closing) 48,928,331 9,231,542
Components of Cash & Cash equivalents
- Cash in Hand g -
Balances with Bank

- on Current Accounts 48 928 331 9,231,542
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents ( Note 9) 48,928,331 9,231,542
0 Contd..,
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GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U40100KA2008PLC045783
Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter ended 31st March 2022

Notes

1. The above cash flow statement has been prpared under the "Indirect method" as set out in the IND AS-7 on the statement of Cash flows

2. Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing activities

Non Cash Charges
S.No. Particulars 1-Apr-20 Cash Flows Fair Value Changes |Others 31-Mar-21
Long Term Borrowings ( Including
1|cunent maturities) 1,721,327,732 (404,552,968) 10,445,362 1,327,220,126
Non Cash Charges
S.No. Particulars 1-Apr-21 Cash Flows Fair Value Changes |Others 31-Mar-22
Long Terin Borrowings ( Including
1|cunent maturities) 1,327.220.126 (341,488,162) 8,513,923 994,245,887
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For Phani Bhushan & Co
ICAI firm registration number: 012481S
Chartered Accountants

Digitally signed by PHANI

PHANI BHUSHAN ghussian kumar m

KUMAR M Date: 202204.22 19:37:01
M. Phani Bhushan Kumar
Partner

Membership Number. 223397

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22nd April, 2022
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Nikhil
Duijari

Nikhil Dujari

Director
DIN: 07684905

AMItTKm
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Digitally signed
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Director
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Date: 2022.04.22
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GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited

Corporate ldentity Number (CIN): U40100KA2008PL.C045783
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended Mar 31 2022

w

Proporty, Plunt and ceqiipment

(Awionint i Rs,)

Prarticulars Furnilure & fixtures Vebilele Officc cquipment Computers Electrical Appliance Total
Dcemed Cost
As at March 31,2020 38,301 684,910 2,272,258 193,605 405,685 3,594,759
Additions . = . . - -
Disposals - - -
Adiustments - - - - - .
As at March 31,2021 38,301 684,910 2,272,258 193,605 405,685 3.594,759
Additions - - . -
Disposals . . - - = .
As at March 31,2022 38301 684,910 2.272,258 193.605 405,685 3,594,759
Depreciation
As at March 31,2020 24,929 535,150 1,396,993 193,596 299,699 2,450,367
Charge for the period 4,845 102,942 198,272 - 57,782 363,842
Deductions = T = £ = =
As at March 31,2021 29,775 638,092 1,595.266 193,596 357,481 2.814.210
Charge for the year 2,959 46,818 157104 - 48,204 255,084
Deduchions - - - - - -
As ot March 31,2022 32,733 684,910 1,752,370 193.596 405,685 3,069,294
Net block
As al March 31,2022 5,568 - 519,888 9 - 525,465
As at March 31,2021 8,526 46.818 676,992 9 48.204 780.549
As al March 31,2020 13.372 149,760 875,265 9 105,986 1.144.392
Right of Use Asset

{Amount in Rs)
Particulars Right of Use Asset- Total
Land
Gross block
As al March 31,2020
Additions 123,526,352 123,526,352
Disposals
As it March 31,2021 123,526,352 123,526,352
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at March 31.2022 123.526.352 123.526.352
Depreciation
As at March 31,2020 6,876,144 6,876,144
Charge for the year 6,857,355 6,857,355
As at March 31,2021 13,733,499 13,733,499
Charge for the period 6,857,352 6,857,352
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2022 20,590,851 20,590,851
Net hlock
As at March 31,2022 102,935.501 102,935.501
As at March 31,2021 109,792,853 109,792,853
Intangible Assets
(Amaunt in Rs )
. Other concession and Total
Particulars .
operator rights

Gross block
As at March 31,2020 2,644,825,232 2,644,589,822
Additions 5,562,689 5,562,689
| Disposals 1,860,393 1,860,393
As at March 31.2021 2.648.527.528 2.648.292.118
Additions -
Disposals -
As at March 31,2022 2,648,527,528 2.648.292.118
Amortization

As al March 31,2020

601,819,459

601,819,459

Charge for the period 120,311,750 120,311,750
Disposals 453,630 453.630
As al March 31,2021 721,677,579 721,677,579
Charge for the penod 120,628,260 120,628,260
Disposals -
As at March 31,2022 842,305,839 842,305,839
Net block

As at March 31&022 l_£_06.22|.689 1,806.221,68%9
As at March 31,2021 1,926,849,949 1.926,849.949




GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U40100KA2008PLC045783
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended Mar 31 2022

4 Investments

(Amount in Rs,)

Non-Current Current
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Investments at amortised costs
Investments in NSC 1 - - 20,000 20,000
Investments at FVTPL
i. Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)
UTI Mutual Fund 2 = = 116,946,016 330,781,373

= = 116,966,016 330,801,373

1 The above NSC certificate is issued as a security to Gujarat VAT authorities
2 Investment in Mutual Funds is with UTI Liquid Cash Plan-Regular Plan Growth having 10297.534 (March 31,2021:10297.534 ) units of NAV 3465.7861/-
(March 31,2021:3353.1236/-) each and with UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Plan Growth having 3466.071 (March 31,2021: 60151,911 ) units of NAV
3465.7861/- (March 31,2021:3353 1236/-) each and with [TT Iiquid Cash Plan - Direct Growth Plan having 5509.449 (March 31,2021:5509.449) units of
NAV 3487.0682/- (March 31,2021:3370.4873/-) each,with UT] Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan having 17230397 (March 31,2021:26967 828 ) units of

NAYV 2909.6777 /- (March 31,2021:2817 6592 /-) each

Investments kept with UT] Mutual Fund are lien marked against Term Loan taken from Financia! Instituitions

S Loans

{Amount in Rs.)

Non-Current

Current

March 31,2022

March 31, 2021

March 31,2022

March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good
Loans

Loans & Advnaces to Related Parties (*) - - 938,720,958 789,020,964
Loan to Employees 16,458

Security Deposit
Security Deposits-Related Parties 5,934,418 5,934418
Security Deposits-others 1,850 1,850 5,752,827 5,752,827
1,850 1.850 950,408,203 800,724,667

(*) Represents Inter Corporate Deposit given to holding company "GMR Energy Limited" at 10.7% p.a rate of interest. During the year FY2021-22 , additional
ICD of Rs 14,97 crs was given to GEL.The ICD is repayable on mutually agreed basis between the parties

6 Other Financial assets

(Amount in Rs.)

Non-Current Current
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good

Unbilled Revenue 52,413,075 53,375,415

Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit (*) - - 426,869,087 346,320,318

Interest accrued on investment in National Savings - 13,353 13,353

Certificate

- - 479,300,994 399,709,086

(*)Interest Accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit given to GMR Energy Limited @10.7% upto 06th Sep 2018 & 10.70% effective from 07th Sept 2018 onwards




GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
Corporate 1dentity Number (CIN): U40100KA2008P1.C045783
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended Mar 31 2022

7 Other asscts

(Amount in Rs.)

but less than 12 months

1 Deposits with original maturity of more than three months

1Deposits represent Margin Money against Term Loan taken from Financial Instituitions

Non-Current Current
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Capital Advances - -
Advances other than capital advances
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to suppliers - . 2,249,426 1,390,935
Advance to employees - - 248,234 212,129
Other advances
Prepaid expenses 3,065,979 4,494 401 1,486,762 8,300,954
Prepaid Rent - - - -
Prepaid Gratuity - 359,449 669,706 -
Balance With Government Authorities 50.000 50,000 13.348.157 13.348.157
3,115.979 4.903,850 18,002,285 23,252,174
8 Inventories
(Amount in Rs,)
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Stores & Spares - 204,140
- 204,140
9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Amount in Rs.)
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents
-Balances with Banks
-In current accounts 48,928,331 9,231,542
48,928,331 9,231,542
10 Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(Amount in Rs.)
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021




GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U40100KA2008PLC045783
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended Mar 31 2022

10 Share Capital (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Authorised :
7,36,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 736,000,000 736.000.000
736,000,000 736,000,000

Issued & Subscribed and Paid-up

7,36,00,000 ( March 31,2021 : 7,36,00,000) Equity

Shares of Rs. 10 each 736,000,000 736,000,000
Total 736,000,000 736,000,000

a. Reconciliation of Shares Qutstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Equity Shares March 31,2022 March 31,2021

In Numbers Amounts in Rs. In Numbers Amounts in Rs.
At the beginning of the year 73,600,000 736,000,000 73,600,000 736,000,000
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 73,600,000 736,000,000 73,600,000 736,000,000

b. Terms/Rights Attached to equity Shares

The company has only one class of shares having a per value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the company the holder of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferrential
amounts.

c. Shares held by holding /ulitmate holding company /holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates,

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Name of Shareholder
No. of Shares held Amount No. of Shares held Amount
GMR Energy Limited (including its nominees), the 73,600,000 736,000,000 73,600,000 736,000,000
immediate holding company
d. Details of Sharcholders holding Equity shares in the Company
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
N f Sharchold
s No. of Shares held | % Holding in Class | No. of Shares held | % Holding in Class
Limi - == =
QMR l?nergy }mlted (including its nominees), the 73,600,000 100% 73,600,000 100%
immediate holding company

As per records of the Company including its register of share holders/members and other declarations received from share holders regarding beneficial
interest, the above share holding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

There is no change in sharcholding taken place duiring the period ended 31st March,2022.



GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited
Corporate ldentity Number (CIN): U40100KA2008PLC045783
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended Mar 31 2022

11 Other Equity

CAmount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Equity component of Related Party Loans

Balance at the beginning of the year 22,332,550 22,332,550

(Loss) / Profit during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 22.332,550 22.332.550
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year (384,712,160), (493,445.815)

(Loss) / Profit during the year 70,175,132 108,733,655

Balance at the end of the year (314,537.027) (384.712.160)
Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year (491,146) (497,721)

(Loss) / Profit during the year (44.533) 6.576

Balance at the end of the year (535,678) (491,146)
Total (292,740,156) (362,870,756)

12 Borrowings

(Amount in Rs,)

Non - Current Current

Boiicalags March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Secured Borrowings
Term Loans from Financial Institution* 740,256,641 1,064,378,182 253,989,246 262,841,944

Total 740,256,641 1,064,378,182 253,989,246 262,841,944

Less:
1'\m<v)1'|1'1t (Iillsc]osed under the head "Other current financial ) B (253,989,246) (262,841,944
liabilities
Net Amount 740.256.641 1,064.378.182 = -

*Term Loan from Financial institutions represent loan taken from L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited, L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited. Applicable
rate of interest for L&T Infra Debt Fund Ltd and India Infradebt Limited is 10.45% PA_which has reduced to 9% Per annum from 10th February,2022 and

16th February,2022 respectively

Term Loan from Financial Institutions is secured by way of first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of all Movable assets (Plant & Machinery,
Machinery Spares, Fumnitures Fixtures, Vehicles), Current Assets (Books Debts, Operational Cash flows, receivables, Commissions) & bank accounts
including without limitation to TRA Account, DSRA Account. Further the Term Loan is secured by way of Lien on the Mutual Funds investments.
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13 Trade payables

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Payable
- Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
- Related parties 12,441,750 9,488,097
- Others 23,874,055 33,105,422
TOTAL 36.315.805 42,593,518

14 Other Financial Liabilities

(Amount in Rs.)

Non Current Current
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowings - - - -
Lease Liability - - -
Interest accrued on Borrowings (*) a =
Non Trade Pavables = - 648 671 542 448
- - 648.671 543,448
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15 Other Liabilities
(Amuount in Rs.)

Non Current Current
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unearned Revenue (*) 2.041.400.799 1.858,947.937 - -
Statutory liabilities

Tax deducted at source - - 843,747 301,100

GST Payable - - 271,802 -
Other Statutory Dues - - 25,047 20,245
2,041,400,799 1.858.947,937 1,140,595 321,345

(*) Unearned/Deferred Revenue amounting 204.14 Crs (March 31, 2021: 185.89 Crs) is created by way of Straightlining of Revenue made to
supplement the decrease in PPA rate in future.

16 Provisions (Current and Non-Current)
(Amount in Rs.)

Non current Current
March 31,2022 March 31,2021 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for superannuation - - 1,333 1,183
Provision for leave encashment 301,219 170,813 33,212 15,232
Provision for Gratuity 361,239 - -
Total 662,458 170,813 34,545 16,415

17 Current Income tax
{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Current Tax Liability (Net of Advance Tax) 4,748,133 (734,754)
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18

19

20

21

22

Revenue From Operations

(Amount in Rs.)

Period ended Period ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Sale of Electrical Energy 322,878,244 346,923,645
322,878,244 346,923,645
Other Income
(Amount in Rs.)
Period ended Period ended

March 31,2022

March 31,2021

Other income
Gain on disposal of investments (net)
Liabilities Written Back
Sale of Carbon Credits
Interest Income on:
Security Deposit
Inter corporate loans and deposits
Bank deposits
Bank deposits and others

10,764,643 12,921,227
B 24,611,196
2,526,809
89,498,632 84,425,243
5,479 -
44.657 3.479,772
102,840,213 125,437,438

Employee Benefits Expense

(Amount in Rs.)

Period ended

Period ended

March 31,2022

March 31,2021

Salaries, wages and bonus 3,675,788 2,811,014
Contribution to provident and other funds 162,689 121,971
Gratuity expenses 16,284 14,985
Staff welfare expenses 4,920 -
3,859,682 2,947,970
Depreciation and amortization expense
{Amount in Rs.)
Period ended Period ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Depreciation of property plant & equipment 255,087 363,842
Depreciation on right to use 6,857,352 6,857,355
Amortization of intangible assets 120,628,260 120,311,750
127,740,699 127,532,948
Finance Costs
Period ended Period ended

March 31,2022

March 31,2021

Interest on debt and borrowings
Interest others
Other borrowing costs

138,100,416 177,447,440
428,256 434,138
1,651.951 2.827.138
140,180,623 180,708,716
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23 Other expenses (Amount in Rs.)
Period ended Period ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Consumption of stores and spares 204,140 -
Electricity and water charges 7,308 12,687
Insurance 2,781,951 3,007,123
Repairs and maintenance - -
Plant and machinerv - -
Others 9,056,525 9,923,543
Rates and taxes 1,189,773 7,680,571
Rent 268,710 252,308
Vehicle running & maintenance 380,891 373,185
Printing and stationery 600 9,602
Communication costs 23,059 33,851
Travelling and conveyance 54,441 54,228
Legal and professional fees 29,813,910 2,294,081
Payment to auditors# (refer details below) 118,600 147,500
Assets Written off - 11,028
Exchange differences (net) - -
Loss on disposal of Fixed Asset - 1,043,714
Logo Fees 1,142,989 1,165,664
Bank charges 3,148 342
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 1,531,507 1,121,473
Operations and maintenance 23,134,379 25,308,317
Miscellaneous expenses 2,513 1,278
69,714,445 52,440,496

(Amount in Rs.)

Period ended Period ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Payment to Auditors (Included in other expenses above)
As Auditor
Audit fee 89,100 94,400
Tax audit fee 29,500 29,500
Limited Review < 23,600
118,600 147,500
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A.

24

Income tax expenses in the statement of profit and loss consist of the following:

(Amount in Rs.)

Tax expenscs

(a) Current tax

(b) Adjustments of tax relating to earlier periods
(¢) Minimum Alternate Tax

(d ) MAT credit entitlement

(e) Deferred tax expense / (credit)

Total taxes

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
14,059,213 -

9,835 2,701

14,069,048 2,701

Reconciliation of taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before taxes is

summarized below:

Profit before tax
Applicable tax rates in India (% Rate)

Computed tax charge

Tax effect of income that are not taxable in determining taxable profit:
a) Others- Ind AS Adjustments
b) Utilisation of previously Brought forward Losses/Depreciation
¢) Others

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit:
(a) Others- Ind AS Adjustments
(b) Effect of Depreciation
(c) Effect of disallowances
Tax expense as reported

Deferred Tax during the period recognised on Remeasurement of Defined Benefit
Plan

Total Taxes

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
84,223,007 108,730,954
16.69% 29.12%
14,058,504 31,662,454
. (2,203,061)

. (118,684,326)

. (243,813)

. 59,222,140

. 30,150,940

709 95,667
14,059,213 (0)
9,835 2,701
14,069,048 2701




B Deferred tax (liability)/ asset comprises mainly of the following:
(Amount in Rs.)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
.No. Particular: ;
5N FCCNIATE Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
Deferred tax liability :
1 [Fixed Asset (impact of difference between Tax Depreciation and Depreciation/ 469,738,249 504,598,445
amortization charged as per Financial Reporting
2 |Right of Use Asset 29,974,818 31,971,679
3 |Amortisation of Transaction Cost on loans 8,642,807 11,122,062
508,355,874 547,692,185
Deferred tax asset :
1 |Carry forward losses / unabsorbed depreciation (ii) 59,861,834 60,259,578
2 |Unearned Revenue 594,455,913 541,325,639
3 |Lease Liability 1,150.116 1.177.595
655,467,862 602,762,813
Net deferred tax (assets) / liability (147,111,988) (55,070,628)
Less: Unused tax allowances and losses not recognised * 147,111,988 55,070,628
Net deferred tax (assets) / liability - -
Reconciliations of net deferred tax liabilities / (nssets)
Opening balance as at beginning of the year - -
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 9,835 2,701
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OC1 (9.835) (2,701)

MAT Credit Entitlement (*)
Closing balance at the end of the year

iii.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised on unabsorbed losses on the grounds of prudence in view of the management's
assessment of future profitability. The Company has recognised deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward

losses only to the extent of deferred tax liability.

As the timing differences are originating and reversing within the tax holiday period under the provisions of section 80-1A of the IT

Act, deferred tax has not been recognised.
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25 Calculation of Earning per share (EPS):
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year. There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at March 31,2021 and March 31, 2020. Thus, diluted EPS
equals basic EPS.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic / diluted EPS computations:
{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a. Nominal value of Equity shares (in Rupees per share) 10 10

b. Total No. of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 73,600,000 73,600,000

c. Add: Shares allotted during the year . -

d. Total No. of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 73,600,000 73,600,000

b. Weighted average number of Equity shares at the year end (in Nos) 73,600,000 73,600,000

c. Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings 70,130,600 108,740,231
(Rupees)

d Basic/Diluted Earning per share of Rs 10/- each (in Rs.) [(c)/(b)] 095 148

26 Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Section 135 of the Companies act, 2013, a company meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profits
for the immediate preceeding three financial years on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. the areas for CSR activities are eradicating
the hunder and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabiliation, environment sustainability, disaster
relief and rural development projects. A CSR Committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarly ailocated to a
corpus and utlilized on these activites which are specified as per schedule VII of the companies act,2013

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021

a Gross amount approved by the CSR Committee to be spent during the year 1,531,507 1,121,473.00
b. amount spent by the Company during the year
i) Construction/acquisition of any Asset

ii) on purpose otherthan (i) above 1,531,507 1,121,473.00
iii) Details of Related party Transactions
GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (refer note no:29) 1,531,507 1,121,473 00

27 Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plans :

Contribution to Provident and other funds under employee benefit expenses are as under
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contribution to Provident and Pension fund 147,128 126,563
Contribution to Superannuation fund & Labour welfare fund 15,562 15,192

Total 162,689 141,756




b) Gratuity
The following tables sct out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at March 31
2022 and March 31, 2021:

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i) Change in defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit at the beginning 235,368 192,968
Current Service Cost 40,727 39,765
Interest expenses 16,005 13,122
Acquisition Cost/(Credit) -

Remeasurements - Actuarial loss / (gain) 82,962 (10,487)
Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions (13,823) -

Defined benefit at the end 361,239 235,368

i} Change in fair value of plan assets:

Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning 594,817 556,626
Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate 34,441 (1,210)
Acquisition Adjustment -

Interest income on plan assets 40,448 37,902
Contributions by employer 1,499
Benefits paid - -

Fair value of plan assets at the end 669,706 594,817

iii) Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

Present Value of Obligation as at year end (361,239) (235,368)
Fair Value of plan assets at year end 669,706 594,817
Net asset / (liability) recognised 308,467 359,449

iv}) Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses.

Current Service Cost 40,727 39,765

Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) (24,443) (24,780)

Total expense 16,284 14,985

v) Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year

Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate (34,441) 1,210

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumption . -

Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 82,962 (10,487}

Retum on plan assets excluding interest income - -

Recognised in other comprehensive income (Gain)/Loss 48,521 9,277)
Particulars

vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation Amount in Rs

April 1, 2023 18,951

April 1, 2024 21,078

April 1, 2025 28,825

April 1, 2026 32,181

April 1, 2026 35,606

April 1,2028 to April 1,2032 231,746

vi) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
Increase / decrease on present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end

(i) one percentage point increase in discount rate (40,804) (27,691)
(ii) one percentage point decrease in discount rate 49,372 33,779
(iii) one percentage point increase in salary escalation rate 49,471 33,742
(iv) one percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate (41,545) (28,144)
(v) one percentage point increase in employee attrition rate 3,900 1,517

(vi) one percentage point decrease in employee attrition rate (4,683) (1,915)



9)

Sensitivity Analysis Method

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit

vii) The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Investment with Insurer managed funds

viii) The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost For the year ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 are set out
below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.10% 6.80%
Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels 6.00% 6.00%
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 10 Years 10 Years

Notes:

1. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into consideration for inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors.

ii. The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors such as the composition of the plan assets held, assessed
risks of asset management, historical results of the return on plan assets and the Group’s policy for plan asset management. Assumed rate of return on
assets is expected to vary from year to year reflecting the returns on matching Govemment bonds

Leave Encashment
Liability towards leave encashment based on acturial valuation amounts to Rs, 334,431 /- as at March 31,2022 (March 31,2021: Rs, 186,045/-)

28 List of Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

parties where control exists

Holding Company GMR Energy Limited (GEL)

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL)

Enterprises having control over the company GMR Enterprises Private Limited (GEPL)

Mr Ashis Basu, Director
Mr.Harvinder Manocha, Director  Resigned on July 6, 2021
Mr. Mohan Sivaraman, Director

Key Management Personnel Mr, Nikhil Dujari, Director Appointed on July 6 2021
¥ g Mr. Ganesh Kumar Danaboina, CFO Resigned on July 23, 2021
Mr. Amit Kumar, CFO Appointed on Dec 27 2021

Mr.Gaurav Kumar, Manager
Mr Khusboo Prasad, CS

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation [GVF]
GMR Family Fund Trust (GFFT)

Other entities




b. Details of the transactions are as follows : *

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021
a, Interest Income on Loan

GMR Energy Limited [GEL] 89,498,632 84,425,243
b. Management service cost (Expenses)

GMR POWER AND URBAN INFRA LIMITED 1,905,334 1,217,890
c¢. Logo Fees-Expenses

GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd [GEPL] 1,142,989 1,165,664
d. CSR Expenses

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation {GVF] 1,531,507 1,121,473.00
c. Closing balances with the above related parties:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021
a. Equity Share Capital held by

GMR Energy Limited [GEL] 736,000,000 736,000,000
b. Equity component of Loan

GMR Energy Limited [GEL] 22,332,550 22,332,550
c. Loan given

GMR Energy Limited [GEL] 938,720,958 789,020,964
d Management Allocation fees payable to

GMR POWER AND URBAN INFRA LIMITED 6,577,360 4,766,695
¢. Interest accrued receivable from

GMR Energy Limited [GEL] 426,869,087 346,320,318
f. Rental Deposit-Receivable

GMR Family Fund Trust [GFFT] 5,934,418 5,934,418
g Logo Fees Payable

GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd [GEPL] 4,721,402 4,721,402

29 Pending Litigations:

30

31

32

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

Foreseeable losses:
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foresecable losses.
Details of Dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006

There are no micro and small enterprises to which the company owes dues which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2022 and
March 31 2021, This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company

Segment Reporting:

The company is engaged primarily in the business of setting and running of Power Plants, As the basic nature of the activities is governed by the
same set of risk and returns these have been grouped as a single business segment. Accordingly separate primary and secondary segment reporting
disclosures as envisaged in indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-108) on Segmental Reporting issued by the ICAI are not applicable to the present
activities of the company

33 Commitments and Contingencics

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities as on March 31,2022 (March 31,2021:- Nil)
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34 Financial Assets & Liabilities

The carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31,2022 and March 31,2021

As at March 31,2022

(Amuoun(in Rs)

Parliculars Fair value through | Derivative instruments|  Amortised cost Total Total
statement of profit or not in hedging Carrying value Fair value
loss relationship
Financial asscts
(i) Investments {other than investments in associates 116,946,016 - 20,000 116,966,016 116,966,016
and joint ventures)
(ii) Loans - 950,410,053 950,410,053 950,410,053
(iii) Trade receivables - - - - -
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents = 48,928,331 48,928,331 48,928 331
(v) Other financial assets - - 479,300,994 479,300,994 479.300.994
Total 116,946,016 p LA78.659.378 1,595.605.394 1.595.605,394
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings - 994,245,887 994,245,887 994,245 887
(ii) Lease Liabilities 3,949,573 3,949,573 3,949,573
(iif) Trade Payables - 36,315,805 36,315,805 36,315,805
(iv) Other financial liabilities - - 648,671 648,671 648.671
Total - - 1,035,159,937 1,035,159,937 1,035,159,937
As at Mareh 31,2021 (Amuount in Rs)
Particulars Fair value through | Derivative instruments| Amortised cost Total Total
statement of profit or not in hedging Carrylng value Fair value
loss relationship
Financial assets
(i) Investments (other than investments in associates 330,781,373 = 20,000 330,801,373 330,801,373
and joint ventures)
(if) Loans - - 800,726,517 800,726,517 800,726,517
(iii) Trade receivables - - - - =
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents - - 9,231,542 9,231,542 9,231,542
(v) Other financial assets - - 399,709,086 399,709,086 399.709,086.29
Total 330.781.373 - 1,209,687.145 1,540,468 518

Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings

1,327,220,126

1,327,220,126

1,540.468.518

1,327,220,126

(1i) Lease Liability 4,043,940 4,043,940 4,043,940
(iii) Trade Payables - - 42,593,518 42,593,518 42,593,518
(iv) Other financial liabilities - - 543 448 543,448 543,448

Total

1,374,401,033

1,374,401,033

1,374,401,033
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35 Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of investment in quoted equity shares and mutual fund
investments.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inpuls
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived from prices).

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars Total Fair value measurements at reporting
date using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

March 31,2022

Financial Assets
Investment in Mutual Funds 116,946,016 116,946,016 - -
Financial Liabilities < - Z -

March 31,2021

Financial Assets
Investment in Mutual Funds 330,781,373 330,781,373 - -

Financial Liabilities = - - .

(i) Short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their fair value.

(ii) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any
estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of
the amounts that the Group could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments
subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date,
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36 Financial risk management objcctives and policies

The Companies primary financial liabiliities comprises of borrowings, Trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company operation's, The Company's principal financial assets include Inter corporate deposits, Trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets that are derived directly from its operations In the course of its business, the Company is
exposed primarily to fluctuations in  liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its tinancial instruments. The Company has a
risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as
interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Dircctors, The risk management {framework aims to:

(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan
(ii) achieve grealer predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Financial
instruments that are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loans receivables, investments, cash and cash
equivalents, derivatives and financial puarantees provided by the Company

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk was Rs.1,595,613,386/- and Rs
1,540,468,518/- as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivables, balances with bank, bank
deposits, Loans, investments and other financial assets.

Cuslomer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The Company does not hold collateral as
security,

The Company’s exposure to customers is diversified and there is no concentration of credit risk with respect to any particular customer as at March 31,
2022 March 31, 2021

With respect to trade receivables / unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted the terms to review the receivables on a periodic basis and to take
necessary mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss based on a
provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and the rates used in the provision matrix

Credit risk from balances with bank and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

In respect of financial guarantees provided by the Company to banks and financial institutions, the maximum exposure which the Company is exposed to is
the maximum amount which the Company would have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. Based on the expectation at the end of the reporting period,
the Company considers that it is more likely than not that such an amount will not be payable under the guarantees provided

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient
liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds,
which carries no or low market risk,

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis, The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and tlexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures, preference shares, sale of assels and strategic partnership with investors etc,



The following table shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash flows including interest obligations for the Company’s (inancial liabilities on an
undiscounted basis, which therefore differ from both carrying value and fair value, Floaling rate interest is estimated using the prevailing interest rate at the

end of the reporting period

(Amount in Rs,)

Particulars 0-1 year 1 to 5 vears > 5 years Total

March 31,2022

Borrow_inus (other than convertible oreference shares) 260.596.236 516.569.988 246.759.624 1.023.925.848
Other financial Ilabflllles (excluding current maturities of 648,671 . | 648.671
Long Term Borrowings)

Lease Liability (including current maturities) 118,431 486,026 3,345,117 3,949,573
Trade payables 36,315,805 - - 36,315,805
Interest 83.318.045 195,002,178 47,105,890 325,426,113
Total 380.997.188 712,058,192 297.210,631 1.390.266.010
March 31,2021

Borrowings (other than convertible preference shares) 262,841,944 768,133,766 334,438,309 1,365,414,019
Other financial Ilab.llmes (excluding current maturities of 543,448 y I 543 448
Long Term Borrowings)

Lease Liability (including current maturities) 94,368 671,961 3,277,612 4,043,940
Trade payables 42,593,518 - - 42,593,518
Interest 132.338.614 315.657.862 91,220,536 539.217.012
Total 438,411,892 1,084.4631589 42§!936!456 1,951,811,937

(i) The above excludes any financial liabilities arising out of financial guarantee contract

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other

conditions, Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the policies and procedures of the Company include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a
diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly
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37 Capital management

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and
short-term goals of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long-term and
short-term strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from
operations and sale of certain assets, long-term and short-term bank borrowings and issue of non-convertible / convertible
debt securities and strategic partnership with investors.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference share,
share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus total debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at an
optimum level to ensure that the debt related covenant are complied with.

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Borrowings other than convertible preference shares 994,245,887 1,327,220,126
Total debt (i) 994,245,887 1,327,220,126
Capital components

Equity share capital 736,000,000 736,000,000
Other equity (292.740.156) (362.870,756)
Total Capital (ii) 443.259.844 373.129.244
Capital and borrowings (iii=i+ii) 1.437.505.731 1,700,349,371
Gearing ratio (%) (i/iii) 69.16% 78.06%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.
Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have
been no material breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022
and March 31, 2021.
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As Lessce

The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for office premises and hiring equipment’s and certain
non-cancellable operating lease agreements towards land space and office premises. The lease rentals paid during the year (included in Note-
35 ) and the maximum obligation on the long term non - cancellable operating lease payable are as follows:

Right of Use Assets (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Land Total
As at April 01, 2020 -
Additions 123,526,352 123,526,352
Depreciation/amortisation during the year (6,857,355) (6,857,355)
As at March 31, 2021 116,668,997 116,668,997
Additions - -
Depreciation/amortisation during the year (6,857,355) (6,857,355)
As at March 31, 2022 109,811,641 109,811,641
Lcase Liability
Particulars Amount in Rs,
As at April 01, 2020 4,128,177
Additions -
Interest for the year 434,138
Repayment made during the year (518,375)
As at March 31, 2021 4,043,940
Additions -
Interest for the year 428.256
Repayment made during the year (522,623)
As at March 31, 2022 3,949,573
(Amount in Rs.)
Disclosed as: March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Non - current 3,831,142 3,949,572
Current 118,431 94,368
Total 3,949,573 4,043,940

Maturity profile of lease liability

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

(Amount in Rs,)

Year ended 31 March 2022 0to 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Lease liabilities 118,431 486,026 3,345,117 3,949,573
Year ended 31 March 2021 0 to 1 year 1 to 5 years > § years Total
Lease liabilities 94,368 671,961 3,277,612 4,043,940

Following amount has been recognied in statement of profit and loss account

(Amount in Rs.)

for year ended

for year ended

Particulars March 31st 2022  March 31st 2021

Depreciation/amortisation on right to use asset 6,857,352 6,857,355
Interest on lease liability 428,256 434,138
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss account 7,285,608 7,291,493

The Company has total cash outflow of leases Rs. 6,23,773/-(inclusive of Taxes) during the year
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IND AS 116 Leases

a. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures :

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases effective from 1 April 2019 The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 April 2019 Under this
method, the standard 1s apphed retrospectively with the cumulative eflect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date ot mitial application
The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less
and do not contain a purchase option (‘short-term leases’), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (‘low-value assets’)

Nature and effect of adoption of Ind AS 116

Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company classilicd each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease
Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach lor all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, which has been applied by the Company

Leascs previously classified as finance leases

The Company did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial application for leases previously
classified as finance leases (i e., the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities equal the lease assets and liabilities recognised under Ind AS 17). The
requirements of Ind AS 116 was applied to these leases from 1 April 2019.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

The Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classilied as operating leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for most leases were recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard had always been
applied, apart from the use of incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based on
the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were
recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application

b. Accountimg Assumptions:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is
reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised

For lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether
or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise
either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and afiects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset),

The Company included the renewal period as part of the |ease term for leases of plant and machinery with shorter non-cancellable period (i e, three to five
years). The Company typically exercises its option to renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on production if a
replacement asset is not readily available. The renewal periods for leases of plant and machinery with longer non-cancellable periods (i.e., 10 to 15 years)
are not included as part of the lease term as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are
included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.
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as at March 31, 2022.

b) The Company does not have any financial assets or liabilities which are denominated in foreign currency as at the Balance Sheet date.

Figures of the previous year wherever necessary, have been regrouped, reclassified and rearranged to conform with those of the current year.
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Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policics:
1 Company overview:

a)

b)
i)

ii)

jii)

GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited is promoted as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) by GMR Energy Limited, the holding Company, to
develop and operate 25 MW Solar Energy based Power Plant at Patan district of Gujaral. The Company has declared commercial operation
on 04th Mar’2012

Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note no 28

The [inancial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors passed in the Board Mecting held on Date:
22nd April, 2022

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) (to
the extent notified) The Ind AS arc prescribed under section 133 of (he Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafler,
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision 1o an
exisling accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in usc.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumplions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in
future periods

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current
when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

c) 1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, Plant & Equipments:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost including goverment grants and decommissioning costs less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items such as purchase price, freight, duties, levies. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate assets are derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

On (ransition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as
at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP in terms of paragraphs D7AA & DI13AA of Ind AS 101 - 'First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards' and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment after making adjustments for
decommissioning liability (paragraph D21 of Ind AS 101), transaction cost of long term borrowings and Government grants as per Ind AS
Transilion Facilitation Group (ITFG) Clarification Bulletin 5 (Revised).



Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation on tangible assets are provided using straight line method over the useful life of the assets as technically estimated by the
Management in terms of Schedule 11 1o the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars Useful Life in Years

Fumitures and Fixtures 10
Electrical Installations & Equipments 10
Vehicles 10
Equipments 10
Compulers and IT Equipments 3

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Further, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Machinery spares which are specific 10 a particular item of Property , Plant &
Equipments and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized as Property , Plant & Equipments

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i e., when the company intends 1o use these during more than a period of 12
months,

iv) Intangible asscts
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are
not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as per the project life.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

v) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly altribulable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the assel, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

vi) Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with, Where the grant relates to an asset, the cost of the asset shown at gross value and grant there on is treated as capital grant
which is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss over the period and proportion in which depreciation is charged, Revenue

grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same period as the related cost which thev are intended to compensate are
Grants of non-monetary assets are recorded at fair value and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of

consumption of the benefit of the underlying assets i.e. by equal annual instalments



vii)

ix)

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whelher a contract s, or contains, a lease. That is, il the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessce :
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assels The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-nise assets representing the right 1o use the underlying

i) Right-of-usc assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., Lhe date the underlying asset is available for use)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of (he assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cosl reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assels are also subject to impairment

At the commmencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs,

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asscts

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option), 1t also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases, Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
cither:

a another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the payments to the lessors are not on that
basis; or

b. the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation 1o compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases. 1f payments to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met

Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items held
for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all applicable costs in bringing goods to
their present locations and condition,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset‘s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash generating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators



X)

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forcecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of twenly to
twenty five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash lows afler the twenty fitth year
To eslimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case,
this growth rale does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity
operales, or for the markel in which the asset is used

[mpairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recogniscd in the statement of prolit and loss, except
for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI, For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life,

FFor assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made al each reporling date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (if available) are tested for impairment annually as at December 31st at the CGU level, as
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation, When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is tecognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs on power plant projects, where decommissioning costs are provided at the
present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset
The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax risk free rate, The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated {uture costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset

Retirement and other Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits
Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders
the related service

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund, superannuation fund etc, are defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable

The Company recognizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short—term employee benefit The company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount thal it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long—term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long—term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method at the year—end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred,




xiii)

The company presents the accumulated leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to
defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non—current liability

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation under
projected unit credit (PUC) method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
a The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

b. Net interest expense or income

Financial Instruments - Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a. Debt instruments at amortised cost

b. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

¢ Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
d. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost: A ‘debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the
principal amount outstanding ’

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI: A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.



Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses
& reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OClI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FV1'OC) debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method

Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC]I, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect lo designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured al fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L

Equity investments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL

For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis, The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCl There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss

Derecognition

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has relained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and
bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Lease receivables

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on;

a) Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

b) All lease receivables resulting from transactions

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to rack changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition



For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The 12
month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required
to consider:

a) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the
financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates the following provision matrix at the reporting date:

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and
loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance,
i.e, as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

c) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further
reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a
timely basis

The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit
impaired on purchase/ origination
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Financial Instruments - Financial liabilitics
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives desighated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include (rade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdralts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss : Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the crileria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equily. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss

Loans and borrowings : This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect
that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative, An embedded derivative causes
some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rale, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in
the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss,

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the company does not separate embedded
derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract, Derivatives embedded in
all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss,
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective
hedging instruments,

Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected
to be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes
which are significant to the company’s operations, Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when
the company either begins or ceases to perform an activily that is significant to its operations, If the company reclassifies financial assets, it
applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains
or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 1o realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously,
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Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward commodity
contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss

Convertible preference shares
Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.
On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of” the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a (inancial liability measured at amortised cost (net ol transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equitly since conversion option meets
Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax The carrying
amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subscquent years, Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components ol the convertible preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to (he liability and equily components when the
instruments are initially recognised
Revenue Recognition

a) Revenue from energy units sold is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) and Letter of Intent
(LOI) [collectively hereinafter referred to as ‘the PPAs’] and tariff rates determined by CERC. Revenue includes unbilled revenue accrued up
to the end of the accounting year. The revenue is also recognised / adjusted towards truing up of fixed charges and energy charges in terms of
CERC tariff regulation 2014-19, wherever applicable

Revenue from energy units sold on a merchant basis is recognised in accordance with billings made to the customers based on the units of
energy delivered and rates agreed with customers

b) Revenue/charges from Unscheduled Interchange for the deviation in generation with respect to scheduled units are recognized/ charged at
rate notified by CERC from time to time, are adjusted to revenue from sale of energy.

¢) Revenue earned in excess of billings has been included under “other assets” as unbilled revenue and billings in excess of revenue have been
disclosed under “other liabilities” as unearned revenue

d) Revenue from sale of power is net of prompt payment rebate eligible to the customers

¢) Claims for delayed payment charges and any other claims, which the Company is entitled to under the PPAs, are accounted for in the year of
acceptance by the customers. Similarly Commission, liquidated damages and any other charges are accounted for in the year of acceptance

f) [nterest is recognized using the time proportion method based on rates implicit in the transaction. Dividend income is accounted for in the
year in which the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equily.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement recognised directly in
equity,

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets
distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
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Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate if the average approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the [unctional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of (he
following:

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign operation are
recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual financial statements of the
foreign operation, as appropriale. In the financial stalements thal include the foreign operation and the reporting entily (c.g,
consolidated {inancial statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in
OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equily to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment

- Ixchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of;, al which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified lo
profit or loss

- Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange diflerences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at [air value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption thal the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumslances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs

All assels and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the [air value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable,
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative
instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in
discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion, Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. Valuers are normally rotated
every five years. The management decides, after discussions with the company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to
use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or
re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability
with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes,
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a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimales and assumplions
b) Contingent consideration

¢) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

d) Investment in unquoted equity shares (discontinued operations)

¢) Property, plant and equipinent under 1evaluation model

f) Investment properties

g) FFinancial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Taxes on income

Current income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the (ax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961,
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The (ax
ratcs and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacled or substantively enacled, at the reporting date

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current fax ilems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 1o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deflerred tax

Deferred (ax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax {osses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction thal is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the lemporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable thal future taxable profits will allow the deferred

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assels and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognised
subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the
acquisition date, If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCl/ capital reserve
depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains, All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss
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Earnings per share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the
beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the ycar ended 31 March 2022

A

Financial ratios

Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator As at As at Remarks
unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Ratio Ratio
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 5.43 5.10 |Note 1A below
Debt-cquity ratio "T'otal debt Total cquity 2.24 3.56 |Note 1A below
[Non-current borrowings + Current
borrowings|
Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator For the year ended | For the year ended Remarks
unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Ratio Ratio

Debt service coverage ratio Iarnings before depreciation and Tnterest expense (including 0.74 0.73 |Note 1A below

amortisation and interest capitalised) + Prncipal

|liarnings = Profit after tax + repayment (including

Depreciation and amortisaton prepayments)

expense + linance costs (excluding

interest on lease liabilities))
Return on equity ratio Profit after tax Average of total equity 9.5% 14.8% |Note 1A below
Inventory tumover ratio Costs of materials consumed Average inventores NA NA|[Note 1A below
Trade receivables turnover Revenue from operations Average trade receivables NA NA|Note 1A below
rato
Trade payables turnover Purchases + other expenses Average trade payables 1.92 1.23 [Note 1A below
ratio
Net capital turnover catio Revenue from operations Working capital (.245 0.276 |Note 1A below

|Current assets - Current
liabilities

Net profit ratio Profit after tax Revenue from operations 0.217 0.313 |Note 1A below
Return on capital employed liarnings before depreciation and Capital employcd 0.101 0.117 |Note 1A below

amortisation, interest and tax |Total assets - Current

[liarnings = Profit after tax + Tax liabilities + Current

expense + Depreciation and borrowings|

amortisation expense + Finance costs

(excluding interest on lease liabilites))
Return on investment Profit after tax Equity share capital + 9.5% 14.8% |Note 1A below

Instruments entirely equity in
nature + Sccurities premium

Note 1

The change in ratio is less than 25% as compared to previous period and hence, no explanation required.




